

# MINUTES

Kelce Board of Advisors Meeting Noon CDT, April 16, 2021 Virtual via Zoom

Board Members Present: Doug Ball, Jeff Beasley, Ben Burns, Tommy Elms, Brenda Flood, Michael Foster, Nancy George, Brandee Johnson, John Lowe, Charlie Myers, Neff Ney, Timon Oujiri, Terry Puett
PSU Members Present: Bienvenido Cortes, Paul Grimes, David Hogard, Steve Horner, Holly Kent
Board Members Absent: Paul Bergant, Ken Brock, Terry Calloway, Susan Cook, Doug Eaton, John Ison, Daniel Kjergaard, Mark Paden, Randy Piccini, Jerry Ross, Lee Scott, Cheryl Sullivan, Steve Thompson, Rachel Vanzant

- I. Welcome and Opening of the Meeting Chair Nancy George
  - Nancy welcomed all to the Zoom meeting.
  - Discussed virtual vs. in person meetings.
    - Decided that July meeting will be virtual and fall meeting with be hybrid or in person.
    - John Lowe is attending a variety of corporate meetings and will provide KBOA with input on what seems to work best.
  - Nancy explained her participation in the Pitt State "Women at Work" event hosted by Kelce this semester and organized by Dr. Murray. It included local business women, Kelce alumni and current students. The event will be expanded in the future to include recruiting opportunities with high school students.
- II. Development Update Holly Kent, Director of Development for KCOB
  - The current community campaign will be completed by June 30<sup>th</sup>
    - It is a 100-million-dollar campaign focused on different student scholarships, academic program support, faculty support and facilities.
  - Notable recent significant gifts for the Kelce building included 2-\$100,000, and 1-\$300,000 pledge, plus many additional smaller gifts
    - The recognition/donor program is being discussed for renovated building
      - A "donor cloud" will be placed inside the front door of the building for those who have named a space
      - Currently discussing adding space for other types of donors (i.e.: tiled split face mosaic in the Grand Hall). Donations for these tiles will probably be \$1000/tile.
         KBOA discussed and liked idea, with the possibility of adding funding tiers.
- III. College Updates and Business Paul Grimes, Dean
  - A. Personnel News retirements and new hires
    - a. Kevin Bracker & June Freund retiring/leaving PSU at the end of the semester
    - b. Finance Professor has been hired Justin Lallemand will begin fall 2021
    - c. Economics position will stay vacant for now because of declining enrollment
    - d. Academic Program Coordinator has been hired Chelsey Decker will begin on May 3
  - B. New AACSB Standards

•

a. Application for next Continuous Improvement Review (CIR) due 07/01/2021

- b. 2021-2022 preparation year and 2022-2023 Year of Record our activities during this year will be included in CIR and evaluated by visitation team
- c. CIR visit in 2023-2024 (most likely fall of 2023)
- C. Strategic Planning
  - a. Updated annotated Strategic Plan (distributed as an attachment)
  - b. Considering extension through FY 2023 discussion
    - i. Would include year of record If extended through 2023
      - ii. Likely that the university strategic plan will be extended an additional year because of potential administrative leadership changes at university level
        - Discussion better to align with and connect to university plan; how much additional would need to be added to the plan if extending a year?
        - 2. Mike Foster motioned to support extending the Kelce Strategic Plan until 2023, Jeff Beasley seconded, motion passed unanimously
  - c. Need to integrate "risk management" and "social impact" strategies discussion
    - i. Social impact strategies include positive changes for force in business & society things that have an impact on the local community. Examples are Business & Economic Resource Center, economic development efforts in the county, things that show we are good social citizens.
    - ii. A Faculty Social Impact Task force has been charged with taking an inventory of what is currently being done and to see what can be added. Will give preliminary results at end of semester faculty meeting. Should have good ideas by the first of the fall semester.
- D. Proposed Student Honor Pledge
  - a. From Strategic Plan 1.5.2; Kelce Student Leadership Council (Presidents of Kelce Student Organizations) proposes:

I affirm to uphold the values of honesty and integrity in all my actions as a student in the Kelce College of Business. I will neither give nor receive any unauthorized aid in the completion of my work as this undermines our community of trust, of which we are all stewards. KCOB Student Oath

- b. Faculty approval and implementation discussion
  - i. Pledge will be posted in each classroom
  - ii. Board members expressed appreciation that this is something that students put together; need to provide feedback to students; does this work well for faculty; discussed that it covers the major bases and covers the spirit of what the students wanted to do; suggestion to change "my" to "academic"; is their value in including some reference to expectations in the world of work? To help lead them into a successful business career.
  - iii. University has its own "Student Code of Conduct" for academic behavior that appears in the Syllabus Supplement in Canvas for all courses
  - iv. Ben Burns motioned to support the student efforts in preparing this oath, seconded by Tommy Elms. In discussion: suggested to consider reversing the two sentences. Approved unanimously.
- E. Generalist BBA Degree previously discussed as Applied Business Administration major
  - a. KLT Retreat developing with new working title: "Business Studies"
  - b. Format use existing minors and certificates to create customized major reviewed proposed curriculum as distributed
  - Major would be earned by completing "at least two" minors and/or certificates
     i. Between 21 and 30 hours in program of study
  - d. Allow for secondary teacher certification; need to add minor in management

- e. Need to legislate through university and up to KBOR as it is a new program
  - i. Discussion by board members:
    - Good for the students as far as flexibility, but would employers understand the degree the student possesses? May need to market this type of degree a bit differently. Wish for it to be viewed favorably, and not a watered-down version of another degree; would be good for some of the more non-traditional types of degrees – entrepreneurs, family businesses, etc.; could be a good recruiting tool; student advising is going to be critical for this major; "Small Business" and "Entrepreneurial" studies could be good draws for this major; any other major that uses the word "studies" in its title? Exploratory Studies, Integrated Studies (program names on our campus). Talked about using "Applied Business". Board Members were asked to think about titles for the degree and send suggestions to Dr. Grimes.
- f. To be presented at the next faculty meeting. Will ask faculty to move proposal forward. Reviewed in the fall, then would go in to the legislative process.
- IV. Old Business next meeting target date? Possible date, July 12, 19, 26
- V. Adjourn 1:30 p.m.



## Annotated Strategic Plan Progress on Action Items through 04/12/21

### Goal 1: Professionalism

The Kelce College of Business will promote a professional and collegial business culture built upon a strong ethical foundation.

### Objectives:

1.1 Undertake and complete the renovation and expansion of Kelce Hall to accommodate the needs of students, faculty, staff, and external constituents.

### Action Items:

<ol> <li>Conduct assessment of physical facility needs, including benchmarking, to determine what instructional, collaboration, academic support, public outreach, and gathering spaces are required to meet college goals.</li> </ol>	<i>Completed.</i> As part of architectural planning, a Building Committee was established to work with the contracted architects. Preliminary work done between 2016 and 2018. Finalization of construction documents for bids, Spring 2021.
<ol> <li>Engage alumni, employers, and all external</li></ol>	Ongoing. Project included as a
stakeholders to secure the financial resources	major component of current capital
necessary to complete all phases of renovation and	campaign. \$12+M identified to-
expansion of Kelce Hall - including architectural	date of the \$18.5M to \$21M
assessment and feasibility studies, construction,	required. Goal is to bid the project
and equipping initiatives.	in 2021.

### 1.2 Deploy strategies to attract and retain highly-qualified faculty.

1.	Conduct faculty searches following professional	Completed and ongoing. Searches
	standards established in the respective disciplines -	for tenure-earning faculty are now
	including advertising, screening, and interviewing.	national in scope.

2.	Offer competitive salaries and compensation packages comparable with our established peer institutions.	Ongoing. Current budget situation limits opportunities to secure market-level funding for all positions.
3.	Effectively utilize existing Faculty Fellow endowments to reward and support highly productive faculty members.	<i>Completed.</i> Esch Faculty Fellow now used to supplement KUSB Associate Dean's salary. Additional endowments needed to expand.
4.	Increase the number of endowments targeted for faculty support, including fellowships, professor-ships, and chairs.	<i>In progress.</i> Faculty endowments included in capital campaign. No significant contributions to-date.

1.3 Create and implement incentives to reward and elevate excellence in teaching, scholarship, service and outreach.

Action Items:

1.	Develop and implement new <del>departmental</del> promotion and tenure guidelines that define and promote academic excellence and quality at all ranks.	<i>Completed.</i> New college-wide promotion and tenure policy document approved by faculty in May 2019.
2.	Establish targets for the attainment of high quality scholastic activity that enhance the recognition and reputation of the college.	<i>Planning stage.</i> See Action Item 2.5.1.
3.	Evolve the Youngman Summer Research Grant program into a Youngman Scholars program that rewards maintenance of academic qualifications and annual scholarly productivity.	<i>Completed.</i> Policy rewritten to reward faculty for maintaining their AACSB targeted qualif- ication based on their position.

1.4 Support professional development and training opportunities for faculty, University Support Staff, Graduate Assistants, and student workers.

endowment earnings to support professional development activities for all college personnel.	<i>Completed.</i> Kelce Endowment used by the dean to annually support faculty travel. Made available to staff when needed.

2.	Explore collaborative opportunities with other campus units and regional peer institutions to produce development and research seminars.	<i>In Progress.</i> Initial discussions with MSSU School of Business dean to develop a joint research seminar program.
3.	Develop and promote an active college-wide professional development series of workshops and research colloquiums.	<i>Ongoing.</i> Professional Development Committee offers workshops six times per year. Research colloquiums started in 2019-2020.
4.	Increase the number of faculty members holding nationally recognized professional certifications in their respective disciplines.	Ongoing. Recent policy approved to financially support professional licenses and certifications in applied disciplines.

1.5 Develop a culture to ensure that faculty members adhere to the University's mission, core values, policies, and contract obligations.

Action Items:

1.	Review and revise as necessary the Kelce College Code of Ethics.	<i>Completed.</i> Faculty task force reviewed and updated Code in 2017-2018.
2.	Empanel a faculty and student task force to develop and implement a Kelce Student Academic Honesty and Integrity Policy.	In Progress. Student Leadership Council given charge in Spring 2021. Proposal under consideration.

### Goal 2: Relevance

The Kelce College of Business will ensure its academic programs, faculty engagement activities, and outreach initiatives satisfy the current and foreseeable needs of its constituents.

### **Objectives:**

2.1 Align all undergraduate and graduate programs with workforce expectations and regional employment trends.

<ol> <li>Implement a survey strategy of stakeholders (e.g., alumni, employers, and potential employers) to determine the relevance of our curriculum for workplace success.</li> </ol>	Ongoing. Surveys regularly conducted on a rotating basis. Updated as needed. Recently migrated from paper-based to an electronic format using <i>Qualtrics</i> software system.
--	--

2.	Systematically analyze regional employment data and conduct benchmarking of curricular offerings with peer schools.	<i>Ongoing.</i> Benchmarking of peer and aspirant school's curriculums used to inform recent curriculum revisions.
3.	Develop a Young Alumni Advisory Board to provide feedback on curricular offerings, insight into current labor market trends, and mentoring opportunities to current students.	<i>In progress.</i> Several meetings held with young alumni groups – interest shown but no traction to date. Working with KBOA to move forward.
4.	Address through curricular change the documented need to improve student skills in business communications, both written and oral.	<i>Completed.</i> New course "Business Professionalism" developed and approved. First offering Fall 2018. Required for all BBA degrees starting in 2020.
5.	Develop a broad-based and flexible interdisciplinary undergraduate degree program for students with small business and entrepreneurial career aspirations.	<i>In Progress.</i> Faculty approved development of an "generalist" BBA degree. Work underway during Spring 2021.
6.	Review and update the curriculum of each existing degree program based on results from surveys, market analyses, and benchmarking of our peer schools.	Ongoing. Revisions to admission standards, Kelce Core and individ- ual majors legislated and approved. Most degree changes in place by 2018. New certificates added; Insurance in 2018 and Professional Sales in 2020.

# 2.2 Provide support for the attainment of excellence in the classroom.

1.	Pursue and establish a college-level differential tuition model that provides the resource base to consistently deliver academic programs of excellence.	<i>Planning stage.</i> In discussions to prepare proposal for college-level student fee or differential tuition – timing issues due to COVID.
2.	Establish target levels of instructional staffing by faculty qualification categories as prescribed by the 2013 AACSB Standards.	<i>In progress</i> . Targets for SA, PA, SP, IP and Other qualification categories approved by faculty vote in 2016. Modifications needed based on CIR results in 2018 and new standards adopted in 2020.

3.	Enhance monetary support for faculty attending pedagogical conferences to achieve teaching excellence.	Ongoing. Targeted faculty sent to teaching conferences and financially supported by dean's office.
4.	Increase faculty participation in seminars provided by the Center for Teaching, Learning and Technology.	<i>Ongoing.</i> Invitations and reminders routinely distributed for CTLT events. Encourage participation in e-Learning Academy. 100% faculty participation in COVID transition workshops.

2.3 Expand the college's outreach activities through the development of centers and institutes that support our mission.

1.	Expand working relationships with the university's Center for Innovation and Business Development and the Small Business Development Center.	Ongoing. Several sections of Business Strategy provided consulting services for SBDC clients. College began hosting SBDC Marketing Office in 2019.
2.	Evolve current economic development activities (e.g., The Pittsburg Micropolitan Area Economic Report and the Economic Outlook Conference) into a formal Economic Development and Business Engagement Center.	<i>Completed</i> . KBOR approved the establishment of the Business and Economic Research Center (BERC) in 2018. Director and office in place.
3.	Develop a Center for Internal Auditing, Fraud Examination and Computer Security to provide outreach and engagement services in these areas of existing expertise.	<i>No action to-date.</i> Loss of internal auditing instructor. New hire in 2020.
4.	Pursue and achieve designation as a National Center of Academic Excellence in Information Assurance/Cyber Defense.	<i>No action to-date.</i> Loss of faculty expertise.
5.	Partner with the College of Education to reinvigorate the Center for Economic Education.	In progress. Preliminary talks taken with new College of Education dean.

2.4 Create incentives to support faculty outreach and engagement with the regional business community.

### Action Items:

<ol> <li>Develop workload policies to provide course release or extra duty compensation for significant and on-going regional outreach and engagement.</li> </ol>	<i>No action to-date.</i> Currently handled on an ad hoc case-by-case basis.
<ol> <li>Ensure that professional engagement activities are a central component of the annual faculty appraisal review process.</li> </ol>	<i>In progress.</i> Faculty asked to set an engagement goal during annual review. May require revision to union contract to formalize.

2.5 Create incentives to elevate the level and quality of faculty scholarship and engagement at the regional, national, and international levels.

### Action Items:

1.	Establish lists of target journals, professional associations, and conferences for each disciplinary area that will enhance the recognition and reputation of the college.	<i>Planning Stage.</i> Preliminary discussions held by KLT. Purchase of Cabell's <i>Journalytics</i> and <i>Predatory Reports</i> in 2021.
2.	Increase the number of faculty members holding leadership roles with targeted journals, professional associations, and academic organizations.	<i>On-going.</i> No formal incentives identified yet. Encouragement and support always present by KLT.
3.	Through the Youngman Scholars Program (see 1.3.3 above), develop and institute financial incentives to publish in targeted journals and present at targeted conferences.	<i>No action to-date</i> . Preliminary discussions held by KLT.
4.	Tie the new departmental promotion and tenure procedures (see 1.3.1 above), annual faculty performance appraisal reviews, and AACSB faculty qualification standards to the targeted lists of journals, associations, and conferences.	<i>No action to-date.</i> Due to reorganization, "departmental" deleted from plan. Will be replaced with "college" where appropriate.

### Goal 3: Growth

The Kelce College of Business will expand its resource base through strategic enrollment initiatives, development activities, and marketing campaigns.

# Objectives:

3.1 Determine the College's capacity to deliver programs within our current and future constraints.

## Action Items:

1.	Analyze the historic and prospective availability of staffing, budget, and physical resources relative to the demand for college programs.	Ongoing. Included as part of decision-making for recent budget reductions. Additional work needed.
2.	Strategically manage course enrollment levels and class sizes to maximize resource efficiency.	<i>Ongoing.</i> Responsibility after reorganization assigned to Associate Deans and Program Coordinators.
3.	Conduct a feasibility analysis of reorganizing departments to capture economies of scale and scope, and to better equalize administrative oversight.	<i>Completed.</i> Administrative reorganization completed and approved by KBOR at end of Spring 2018. New structure in place beginning Fall 2018.

3.2 Undertake market analyses to determine growth potential for existing and new programs.

1.	Utilize surveys detailed in 2.1.1 above to identify target areas for development and expansion of curricular offerings.	<i>Completed</i> . Data informed development of the Online Professional MBA, MPAcc, and the proposed BBA in Business Studies. PMBA generating significant new discretionary income for the college.
2.	Explore cooperative degree and certificate programs with other units on campus.	Ongoing. New MBA Human Resources concentration in partnership with College of Technology is first example. Talks in progress with nursing and construction management.

3.3 Implement recruitment activities to optimize enrollments relative to capacity.

## Action Items:

1.	Increase faculty participation in activities undertaken by the Office of Admissions (high school visits, college fairs, Pitt CARES, Rumble in the Jungle, etc.) to recruit students to the college.	Ongoing. Coordination of college recruitment and retention programs delegated to the new Director of Outreach and Business Engagement. Work needed to enhance campus visit experiences.
2.	Institute an effective replacement for the Opportunities in Business Day.	Planning stage. Exploring how PBL can work with local FBLA high school chapters to host events. Experimenting with a Women in Business event for local high school students.
3.	Establish and maintain a Kelce College presence at local college fairs and graduate school fairs.	<i>Ongoing</i> . Representatives sent to statewide fairs (e.g. FBLA) in Kansas and Missouri. New academic support coordinator will assist.
4.	Explore the creation of a Kelce Ambassador program to undertake recruitment activities.	In Progress. Discussions held with Student Leadership Council in Spring 2021.

3.4 Undertake strategic fundraising activities to support planned growth and expansion of physical facilities and endowments.

1.	Establish priorities and goals for the current capital campaign.	<i>Completed</i> . Kelce building project is the university's and the college's #1 priority.
2.	Maintain and enrich relationships with key alumni and friends of the college.	<i>Ongoing</i> . Many trips to visit alumni and presentations to civic and community groups by dean and others.

3. Conduct a fundraising initiative with the college's	In progress. Preliminary
international alumni.	discussions with alumni and
	advancement offices have been
	undertaken. Hosted Gorilla
	Gathering in Seoul South Korea,
	Spring 2019. More work is
	needed to determine strategy.

3.5 Enhance marketing activities to promote and improve the image and professional reputation of the Kelce College brand.

1.	Explore viability of hiring a part-time staff member to oversee external relation initiatives.	<i>Revised and completed.</i> Reorg- anization resulted in reallo- cation of one position into the Director of Outreach and Business Engagement (DOBE).
2.	Reinstitute the "Kelce Connections" semi-annual newsletter to alumni and friends.	<i>Ongoing.</i> First issue published in 2016 and continuing to-date.
3.	Further develop and expand the college's social media presence.	<i>Ongoing</i> . Responsibility of new DOBE. Work delegated to GA and coordinating with University Marketing and Communications.
4.	Increase faculty participation in providing college stories to University Relations for inclusion in media releases.	<i>Ongoing</i> . KLT routinely sends story ideas to University Market-ing and Communications.
5.	Increase college faculty participation in, and contribution to, major university initiatives and committees.	<i>Ongoing</i> . KLT working with faculty senate and president's office to ensure proper repre- sentation for college after reorganization. More work needed.
6.	Diversify college career fairs to include employers seeking recruits from a broader array of business majors.	<i>In progress</i> . College's "Meet the Firms" event now open to Finance and Business Economic majors. COVID challenges constrain further expansion of fairs.

7. Maintain and expand outreach efforts to current students (e.g., fall and spring hotdog picnics) to cultivate a stronger affinity and allegiance to the Kelce College.	Ongoing. Examples - Fall and Spring picnics have become a college tradition with large turn- outs. Receptions for employers during Career Expo initiated. Recreational bowling mixers for MBAs and faculty held.
<ol> <li>Increase participation of Kelce student teams in regional and national competitions and conferences.</li> </ol>	Ongoing. The number of teams has increased annually – some with great success. Teams have participated in the Enactus Nationals, CFA Research Institute Challenge, KC Federal Reserve Bank Code-a-thon, Phi Beta Lambda State and National Competitions, Kansas State Entrepreneurship Challenge, Campus CEO Pitch Competition, and the Shocker New Venture Competition.